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THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

MADAME CLERK: Your Honor, this is indictment 2015-GS-
23-02626, Jerry Wayne Stewart, indicted for manufactufing
methamphetamine, pleading to manufacturing methamphetamine,
second. And it is a true bill.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MADAME CLERK: Please raise your right hand. Do you
swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and
nothing but fhe truth so help you God?

MR. STEWART: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Stewart, I need to ask you some'
que;tions. How old are you?

MR. STEWART: Sixty --»I'll be sixty in March, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. And it's without -- this is without
any recommendation?

MS. McCALL: That's right, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And what's the maximum? It's five to
thirty?

MS. McCALL: That's right, Your Honor.

MR. CRANGLE: Howe&er, the five is suspendable because
he has two prior possessién offensés, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And this is the one we were up here ---

MR. CRANGLE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Stewart, how long you been
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incarcerated?

MR. STEWART: Well, twenty-three days this time, but .
before that -- I've been -- the reason that I couldn't make
probation and all that is I've been trying to stay out of
jail, paying bonds and everything else. But all this is
behind me now. )

And T live with my sister. She's seventy-five years
old. And she's the youngest one I've got. I've got three
sisters. And the oldest one's about eighty;five. And if I
go in prison, they going to send me all the way down to the
other side of -—-

THE COURT: Well, now you understand that there's a
minimum sentence of five years here? 1It's suspendable but

MR. STEWART: Well, ---

THE COURT: Hold on just a second. Trust me a minute.

(Whereupon a bench conference was held off the record)

THE COURT: All right. You understand that given your
récord and, in fact, you're on probation, right?

MR7 STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. You understand that in all
likelihood you're going to have to go to prison at some
point? You understand éhat? I mean, you can argue -- you
can ask me, but you've got a long record and you're on

probation for this kind of stuff. So let's get through the
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questioning and then I'll let you talk to me, okay?

MR. STEWART: Yes, si;.

THE COURT: All right. How far did you go in school?

MR. STEWART: I -- it was in reform school, Your Honor.
They didn't have grades. I don't —-—-

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STEWART: I don't have much education.

TBE COURT: All right. And qhere did you last work?

MR. STEWART: I work for myself. I used to do tree
service until I got on SSI.

THE COURT: Okay. And how many times have you been on
probation? Several?

AGENT COLLIER: Yeah, I'm not sure ---

MR. STEWART: I've always done it before.

THE COURT: Yeah, hold on.

AGENT COLLIER: 1I've got his current case, but I don't
have --- :

THE COURT: Okay.

AGENT COLLIER; -—-- anything in front of me shéwing his
other cases.

THE COURT: Okay. Have you had any drugs or alcohol-
within the last twenty-four hours?

MR. STEWART: No, sir.
THE COURT: Are you taking any kind of medication or

prescription medicine that might prevent you from knowing
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what's going on here today?

MR. STEWART: No, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. You take any kind of prescriptiohs
at all, like blood pressure stuff and that ...

MR. STEWART: I'm supposed to be taking stuff for blood
sugar. And I've got arthritis in my joints.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STEWART: My spine is deteriorating. I've got
bulging discs and herniated discs. And I've had to have
three discs in my throat replaced.

THE COURT: Me, too. That ain't no fun, is it?

MR. STEWART: No, sir, it ain't.

THE COURT: All right. But you're not taking anything
now for any of that stuff that might get you confused?
That's what I'm ---

MR. STEWART: No, I'm not -- I'm not taking anything
right now.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CRANGLE: He'll give us a chance to speak, okay?
Just answer his questions ---

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. CRANGLE: --- and then we'll get a chance to talk
to him, okay?

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm going to let you talk then. And

you understand that this is going to be a violation of your
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probation? You understand that?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Ail right. Do you understand that if you
want tb plead guilty today that you've got to waive your
constitutional rights?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And in particular you've got to waive your
right to a jury trial. You doing that?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You're waiving your right to remain silent?

MR. STEWART: I'm ——-

THE COURI:\ I'm going to let you talk, but you have to
waive your right to remain silent.

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: You waiving your right to put up a defense
to all these charges?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE CdURm: And you've got a right under the
Constitution. 1It's called the Confrontation Clause. You
could require the State to come in and bring in Witnesées
and allow your attorney to cross examine them, but you've
got to waive your right of confrontation if you want to
plead guilty. So you waiving that right?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: . Okay. Have you had plenty of time to speak
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to your lawyer?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And have you talked to him about those
constitutional rights in this case?_

MR. STEWART: Yes. He's told me everything ---

THE COURT: Yeah, you've got a good one. I mean, he's
done everything you've asked him to do, right?

MR. STEWART: He's a very good lawyer.

THE COURT: Yeah. Do you have any questions for him
now?

MR. STEWART: No, sir. But I ---

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STEWART: I -- well, I ---

MR. CRANGLE: We'll get a chance to tell him.

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm going to let you talk. Just let
me get through this and then we'll get ——.now, you are
understanding you're violating your probation?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And what's he got hanging over his head
with probation?

AGENT COLLIER: He has three years. He was sentenced
by Judge Welmaker on 9/17/13 for possession of meth. He had
three years with one day time served and two years
probation.

THE COURT: All right. So you realize you could be



10

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18.

19
20
21
22
23
24

25

10

revoked for up to three years minus the time you served?
You understand that?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay; All right. So you're satisfied with
your lawyer? .-

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STEWART: Very satisfied.

THE COURT: All right. Have you had plenty of time to
speak to your client, youhthink he understands the elements
of these charges and his waiver of constitutional rights?

MR. CRANGLE: Yes, Your Honor.

¢

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Stewart, do you want to
plead guilty to this charge?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And are you guilty?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. I'm going to accept your
plea and find it freely and voluntarily made based upon the
advice of couﬁsel. I find that he waived his constitutional
rights and did so knowingly and volﬁntarily.

Yes, ma'am. Now, listen to what she's going to tell me
because I'm going to ask you if you agree with it.

MS. McCALL: May it please the Court. On September

26th, 2014 a Greenville County Sheriff's Office deputy
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11
initiated a traffic stop on the Defendant's moped after he
observed the Defendant having.a hard time maintaining his
balance and was weaving inside his lane. The officer
suspected that the driver was impaired.

" The Defendant did not have any paperwork for the moped.
And the Defendant was acting very nervous. The Defendant
gave the deputy consent to search his moped.

During the search of the moped's storage container, the
container under the seat, the deputy observed items
consistent with manufacturing of methamphetamine. Deputy
located items to include drain cleaner, empty two liter
bottle, bottle cap with plastic tubing running through it,

™~
plastic bags with crystal substance that tested positive for

methamphetamine. During the search the deputy was exposed

to chemicals, and he had to be treated at Greenville
Memorial Hospital.

Records revealed the Defendant had purchased eighty-
five pseudoephedrine eighty—five times and had been blocked
from purchasing thirty-nine times, this according to
Greenville County. The Defendant does have a prior record.
There is no recommendation. And jail days that I have for
this charge is seventy-five days or seventy-six.

MR. CRANGLE: With regards to those jail days, Judge,
he's currently serving twenty-four daysvfor the violation of

probation. And he also was arrested in 2013. B2nd he was
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12
incarcerated for ninety-one days for another manufacturing .
methamphetamine case that was subsequently dismissed, which
is ﬁasically dead time to him,.Your Honor. But he did
ninety-one days and then the case was dismissed, Your Honof.

I'd ask you to consider in totality a hundred and
ninety-one days, credit time served considering that he's
done twenty-four, seventy-six and then ninety-one. And the
ninety-one was for a methamphetamine case that was very
similar to this. It was a no weight, found some of the
stuff, Judge.

THE COURT: Ail right. And I also want to make sure
that I find that he's admitting he's violated his probation.
All right. You agree with all those facts?

. |

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURI; All right. Mr.: Stewart, it's real clear to
you —-- clear to me. How old are you?

MR. STEWART: 1I'll be sixty in March.

THE COURT: You've got a bad meth problem. Man to man,
you've got a bad meth problem. And at your age, you ought
not to be up here dealing with this stuff. You taking care
of your sisters?

MR. STEWART: Sif?

THE COURT: You taking care of your sisters?

MR. STEWART: I stéy with my'youngest sister. And I

help pay the bills. And without my check, she won't have
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enough ---

THE COURT: I know.

MR. STEWART: --- to live on. My counselor said that
you might consider something about reinstating my probation
or whatever. If you could do that, I could stay at home. I
would have been -- I'd be benefitting more out here than in
the penitentiary sitting around‘noﬁ doing nothing and being
across the State where I couldn't even, you know, see my |
sisters or nothing.

And like I said, they're old. I mean, they ---

THE COURT: Well, here's the problem. I mean, I feel
for you, but you've been away from them for a hundred and
ninety-one days because you've been waiting in jail on all
these little/meth charges.

MR. STEWART: I -- well, I've been trying to get in and
out, in and out because I've had -- I've been paying bonds
and bails and all that to try to get out. That's one of the
reasons I messed up my parole. And I promise you sincerely,
if you give me one chance and let me go home and stay with
my sister to help her, I promise you that you could check on
me any time you want to and you will not regret it at all.

THE COURT: Well, here's -- oh, I might regret it
because here's the problem. You've got three years hanging
over your head. So what I'm trying to do for you today is

wrap it all up into one big package, deal with it and then
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-- I assume y'all don't want him on probation again, is that
correct?

AGENT COLLIER: That'd be correct. I failed to
mention, he has been served with a warrant back on December
22nd of '15. And part of that was for not reporting since
October of 2013.

THE COURT: Well, I'm going to make you halfway happy,
but, you know, I'll do my best. I mean, look, you've got to
get yourself straightened up. But I'm trying to get this
over with for you, all -- tied all up.

MR. STEWART: Well, I was just -- the probation officer
would get their money, the court would get theirs, I'd still
be able to help my sister.

THE COURT: I know.

MR. STEWART: If I go.-- if I go into prison, they're
going to cut my check off.

THE COURT: I know.

MR. STEWART: It's not going to help me. It's not
going to help her. And --- ’

THE‘COURI: But now let me tell you something. I mean,
this isn't my first rodeo. And here's the problem. I know
this doesn't make any difference, but it just makes me feel
better. It ain't my fault that you do all this stuff.

MR. STEWART: I know that, sir.

THE COURT: You know, I mean, —---
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MR. STEWART: And I ---

THE COURT: I know you're trying to get me to do
something. And I'd love to help you. My problem is, I'm
afraid that if I let you go at lunch that by four you'd be
out trying to find somebody to give you a little bit of
meth.

MR. STEWART: No, sir.

THE COURT: I would if I was in your boat.

MR. STEWART: I don't -- listen, Your Honor, last night
I sat down and I thought, I thought and I thought hard after
I ;een.my lawyer. And I prayed. And I told God, I said,
look, I'm putting it in your hands. Whatever you do is fine
with me.

THE COURT: Well, that's the only chance you got right
now with meth. Meth's hard to beat.

MR. STEWART: And my sister has been trying to get me

to go to church with her and everything. And I told God if

‘it works out, you know, I'd be there Sunday morning.

THE COURT: Well, you won't be there this Sunday, but
you're not going to be there -- you won't be gone as long as
you think. I mean, you're looking ét thirty years in
prison. You understand that?

MR. STEWART: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Literally. i don't think you'd make it to

thirty years.
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MR. STEWART: I don't think so either.

THE COURT: All right. What I'm going to do as I said
earlier, I'm going to accept the plea. And this is sortvof
your last shot. But the sentence is ten yeérs‘provided upon
the service of three years, then six months probation. And
I'm doing that as short as I can so y'all can get him off.

I'm going to revoke three years on probation, run it
concurrent and terminate it. I assume there's no victims
since these are all just th;s stuff. And for those six
months, random drug and alcohol testing, substance abuse
counseling. I'm just trying to shorten it to -- as short as
I can. This is the best I can do for you.

I'm going to give you credit for the hundred and
ninety-one days because here's the deal. I can't help you,
none of your lawyers can help you, your sisters can't help
you, the Lord can help you, but you're going to have to do
something yourself. And with your record coming in front of
me, I can't let you go home.

But there are some judges that would look at you and go
you know what, you're wasting everybody's time, thirty
years. I promise you there's judges that would do it. I'm
not saying I'm a good guy. I'm just saying I'm trying to
help 9ou out.

Your lawyer's a good lawyer. The solicitor's not

trying to bury you under the house. So do your time. It's
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not that much. And then go to church with your sister and
be happy. Time's short.

MR. CRANGLE: Don't be messing with that stuff anymore,
either because it's a mandatory ten years if you get caught
again with the manufacturing.

THE COURT: I mean, yeah, there ain't -- next time,
it's ten years. And that's the minimum. All right.

MR. CRANGLE: Okay.

THE COURT: Good luck to you, brother.

MR. STEWART: Your Honor, I'd like to say that you are
one of the nicest judges I've ever been in front of.

THE COURT: Well, that's because in Greenville y'all've
got a bunch of mean idiots, but I appreciate it. I would
like that -- I would like a copy of that transcript. Good
luck to you, brother.

(Hearing Ended at 1:20 pm)

(End of Requested Transcript of Record)
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Certificate of Reporter

I, the undersigned,‘Susan W. Hudgins, Official Court
Reporter for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the State of
South Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a
true, accurate, and complete transcript of record of all the
proceedings had and evidence introduced in the trial/hearing
of the captioned case, relative to appeal, in the Circuit
Court for Greenville County, South Carolina, on the 14th day
of January 2016. -

I do furthef certify that I am neither of kih, counsel,
nor interest to any party héreto.

June 11, 2016

Circuit Court Reporter



WITNESSES

C R Cunningham

Greenville County Sheriffs Office

9/26/2014

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2014A2330208918

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
—TRUE BILL

—_ FORFEMAN GRAND JURY
Foreperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO.  2015-GS-23- B0z
The State of South Carolina

County of Greenville

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
TERM 2015

. April .

THE STATE

V8.

JERRY WAYNE STEWART

9777 Indictment for
3776

MANUFACTURING METHAMPHETAMINE

VIOLATION § 44-53-0375

L]

6l



20

-
PRy 8
o0

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) * INDICTMENT FOR
) MANUFACTURING METHAMPHETAMINE
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )

"At a Court of General Sessions, convenedon . APR 2 1 2015 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon the:ir oath:

3

. That JERRY WAYNE STEWART did in Greenville County, on or about the 26th day of September, 2014,

knowingly manufacture -methamphetamine or did knowingly provide financial assistance or otherwise attempt,
aid, abet or conspire to rjnanufacture methamphetamine or was knowingly in actual or constructive possession of
the common ingredient(s) and/or supplies used in the manufacturing of methamphetamine, This is in violation of

§ 44-53-375 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

a0

SOLICITOR BAR # 73639
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‘59%@%1'}: COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
COUNTY OF Greenville ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2015GS2302626
o Jerry Wayne Stewart )  A/WH# _2014A2330208918
o )  Dateof Offemse: =9/26/2014
Race: WHITE Sex: M __ Age: 59 ) SC.Code §: 44-53-0375
DOB: [l-1956__ ss# N )  CDRCode#; _ 3776
Afldress: )
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMYV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[] o
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [Q -CONVICTED OF or [JPLEADS
T0;{ Manufacturing, Methamphetemine 2nd /
o . [74
;imviolationof § 44-53-375 of the S.C, Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3777 o
] NON-VIOLENT™_[X] VIOLENT [XJSERIOUS [ JMOSTSERIOUS [ JMandatory GPS(CSC 16172545
’ . w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: Asndicted, [JLesserIncluded Offense, [JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury, (defendant's initials)

The pleais: Waﬁons or Recommendation, 0O i egotigted Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State.

ATTEST: £1 .
72567 4 dre ay b V- I
Attorney for [Jefendant SC Bar#

" MeCall, Ketflyn Harper §C Barf
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the '-’é ate Department of Corrections, [ ] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of ZQ days/montbs/}@ [] underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of $ ; provided that upon the service of ﬁ days/mon Pgrid/or payment
of§ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for j
.‘(@t flafitend subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probtion, which are incorporated by reference. _ P ’

¥ CONCURRENT or  [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: (mwl O
: -,-,E,,._?I'he'l‘)efendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections, | §f %’

] ‘The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Rq of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C, Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is uniawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) tq ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

‘ SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [7] Deferred [] Def WalvesHearing [ | Ordered  PTUP
Total: 8 ) plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED  []
" 1 Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp.
J— May serve W/E begining :
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling &
*Fine: _ 3 Random Drug/Alcohol testing
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Convs. Su;charge) ‘:mo Jm pmts. of § __beginning -
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge 10 7§ . .
g 3652993 (U Asesosmen) v th . paid to Public Defender Fund
'§ 56-1-286 (DUT Breath Test) $25 % or:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob}) $500 8
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 %
§ 50-21-114(BUT Breath Test Fee) 350 %
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca _§ (] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surcharge) $5 $ § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County. (if paid in installments) 3 / during probation.
TOTAL % -
Ty, . Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk /awe B iherrnotrra. Judge cfde':xdg/,? ,
Court Reparter: s Sentence Date; /l//A,L// 20/C

- SCCA/217 (03/2011
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
1584076

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
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FOREMAN GRAND JURY

3eperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKETNO. 2012:G5-23- (]|
The State of South Carolina

County of Greenville

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
Decembel  TERM2012

v

THE STATE -
V8.
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v Indictment for
3009 '
POSSESSION OF METHAMPHETAMINE
VIOLATION § 44-53-0375
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ' " . INDICTMENT FOR
: ) POSSESSION OF METHAMPHETAMINE
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) .

At a Court of General Sessioné, convened on

the Grand Jurors of Greenville
., DEC 18 2012 :
County present upon their oath: '

That JERRY W, STEWART did in Greenville County, on or about the 16th day of February, 2012, willfully and
unlawfully have in his possession a quantity of Methamphetamine (Crank), a schedule IT controlled substance.

This is in violation of §44-53-0375 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

s Gt
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF _Greenville ; . )
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2012GS231011S

Jerry W Stem ) A/Wik 1584076
AKA: . . -y Dateof Offense:  2/16/2012
Race: WHITE Sex: M Age: 57 )y SCCode §: 44-53-0375 (A) .
DOB: pgug-1956  SS#: NN )y CDRCode# 3009
Address: (N )
City,State,Zip:  GREER, SC 29651
DLé: g SID¥: g SENTENCE SHEET

*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[] No[]

- In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was ( [2) COFI% \'s le}-EéD gl‘-‘ orX (JPLEADS

TO: Drups/possession of less than one gram of meth. or cocaine base, 1st

in violationof § 44-53-0375 (A) - of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3009
NON-VIOLENT [] VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [JMOSTSERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC {11817-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: AsIndicted, [T]Lesser Included Offense, []Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury, (defendant's initials)

Thepleais:  {X]Without Negotiations or Recommendation, Nepotiated S¢ntengf, s [] Recommendation bzll?étatq
Q

Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, [ County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of 5 dayslmonthsr O under the Youthf:ll O;fen_deri ct not to exceed years

and/or to pay a fine of $ ; providedthraf upon the service of ‘months/years and/or payment
of $ + plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance is suspended with probation for

momh@and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
[1 CONCURRENT or [0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

e Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.
[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25.65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,fransport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition. .

SPECJAL CONDITIONS:
[ORESTITUTION: [[] Dcferred [] Def. Waives Hearing [ Ordered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: _$ . days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ____ Obtain GED |
[J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp.
.. May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling [Q/
*Fine; $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing _
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 3 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211¢A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 §$ /CU pmts. of beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ . .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 12 p $ . paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 8 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 s«z_s—
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 ¢
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/cz § [0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 'S5 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ during probation ’
TOTAL $
Presiding Jud, - g
Clerk of Court/ DepytyfClerk VM /3 wl LM‘( Judge Csde: B S
Court Reporter: Hi‘b\ AU Sentence Date: / 17 / { 3

SCCAZ217 (03/2011) ?( & PARA\J?)'\M A 2



RETURN. STATE OF.SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY'QF.

GREENVILLE
THE STATE

against

" Constable or Law Enforcamant Oficer

JERRY- W ST EWART

-Arcapy of this Amest Wantant was defivered by me t0:the.
rollowmg ‘defendant

ARREST WARRANT

Offense: Violation:of Cofiditions of Probation Sugesvision

Offenss Section:  24-21-450

Date: 911720158

Officer and Agency; SC Depariitient of Probation:.
Paiole and Pardon Services:

onfhe ;l;l :lgxay,;of
&S50

cons(able ‘oriaw EnforcememOft; icer

lerémy Brown

“This. Warfant s eenmed for service. i {County: of wanant Dispos’itio’n
Certificatlon] County. ) ed'is lo be. arested and brought :
before me lo deait with-acto mg 1o.law:

L) “ .
5 Sentence

“Signature of dudge

Co-Defendants

Fatm 16 {Tempiate) [Révision & fewsion Data 110875) Page Bl

Magistrate

INFORMATION ON DEFENDANT
Name  JERRY W STEWART

Address

TAYLO

Phone N

Sex  Mae  Race Vil Helght 508

Weight 185 ‘Birth date
Sicial Security Number

Nits

Address ™

Prone

Nativa

Addrass

Phone

Narme

.Addigss

Phone

. N_am;:

Address.”

Phone

PRELIMINARY HEARING held By

Magistrate,

of. ' .

Degision

. BAIL
Date Set

Surely

Ge
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l;o«n 16, \-Amb(’Warm
wm ‘Appeavod

Allerney Generel.
Seuim 17-33-1&0
iarh 16, 1078

Probation

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ARREST WARRANT
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE s )
i IndictmentNumber 42-GS:23-10115

Warrant Nt W23-15:1402

State ldentification Na. ($16) 00006149,

TG ANV LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR COUNTY OR QF “THE; MUNJCIPALITY oF GBEENVILLE AND ANY CONST!\BLE OF THIS!
MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT;,

1t dppeating from theattached ffidauit (bt there.ary reascnable ‘groiinds 1o believe that JERRY WSTEWART, didonthe 11 day oF September; 2015 violate the
“criminal laws of the State of SouthiCaigling as. setforth below;

DESCRIPTION.OF OFFENSE:

By VIGlating. ¢onditions: 1, 7,9, 10and speclal ‘conditions of piobiation asordered In.cause nurnber 12-GS-2310115 by the: Greenvme Count,y Coustof Genera\
Sesslonson 9/17/2013;

Now, therefore, youare-empowered and directed 1o arrest the said defendant and hring JERRY W STEWART before me-forthivith 1o be deatt with acrand!ng Ydi law;
A copyof this Afrest Wasrant shall bedeuvered tothe defendantat thetine ofits execttion, arss; saon 3 ereafteras 5 pracﬂcabie. ‘Done at GREENVILLE, 5. €. this-
11 day.of Seorenitiér 3015:

L LS

~ Countyof GREENVILLE
STATE OF SOUTH.CAROLINA. AFFIDAVIT
PersGnally 3ppeaied-befdre e, oneJéremy Brown, who: first’ belng duly siwor, deposes and:says that JERRY W STEWART, did withilr this County and State on the:
ii.day ‘of Sepiternber, 2015,y iolate the crimingl laws of th'State of South Carouna in the foliowing particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE:

By violating ndmons 1,7,9.10 and special condmohs ‘of probation as orderéd incause number 12-65-23—1 D115 by thie Greenville County: Cour of Geheral.
Sesslons onS {43 <

The aﬂ’anl states: lnauhete 18 probsbls cause'to beflsve that \he defendant:named-above did commit the crime(sy’ “set: [otth. and thal such probible:
cause is based on the:foll

By ifg to report on 14; /13, 1/20/14, 6/10/14 and 8/26/14 or’ anyt:ime thexéafter:
|8y £2iling to pay sf,. bexng $1150 in arreavs.

By failing to pay sur, being $288.40 in arréars.

By failing to, pay drig test: fee, being $20 in arteara.

‘{By :€ailing to cowplet:e court: Hrdered SAC..

By .tailing to £o)1low the advtce and instruetions of' t‘he agent.

Swom taiand! Subscnbed before e
this: 11 day: f;ememb_l 2915.

Address‘ SUTE 6500

'- ' . (LS 301 UNIVERSITY RIDGE
Ay e VT GREENVILLE-SC29601
o oty pumm GREENVILLE.
i ot S 2078 .(B64)282-4540
ol Wy Camm sior EXpires '
18:1 (Tamtals) {Revision A Revision Bite 1140898} Pagetor2
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STATE OF soum cmoum _ IN THE COURT OF GENERAL;SESSIONS
s ' Ri nt-Murb r

Go,untyof _ i ‘9-. -GS~ n?‘B é‘ 15

STATE Prohallon C/W#s*

Nanig'of ! Origl nai e

Onigirial AMW:#: ﬁggfﬂ'ﬁ T(ﬂ

Date of Original Offense: . o4 =t
" Conviclion 8.C; Code:§; L

_Conviction. CDR Codle # 3-

Qriginal Senlence: 7\\ 1/ end

e AN /)
~ | Dalshsp- 3. Tore ER LB
“The.above named-defendant. ha bean ; ey e | with' violating the condltions of probatlon ordered on __{ /€ ./ £ ..?ﬁn the: coun of
“@GRneral Sesslons. of b AA. . ‘County, ‘ant/or, the'additional conditions ordered by.tha Court in pmbattc?
='conlmuanon oniers(s) Issuied. o — 85 set forth in'the atlached warrant(s) or: citation(s) dated -{/-{Q

. ‘After haarlng the evldence and beirig-duly advised, in-thg (n:g_s_gg_cx/ébeeasa) of fhe.defendant; | find that’ the-above,
narved. defendant has.viclated the fcﬂowmg condltlo%(’;') of probaﬂon (Usl 8y aumber-drindicdl 'epec]al Eonditions.ag:provided I the: amuvn)

A7 20 2 S A3 ”,.,- AR AR
Thier fore, TS ORDERED that: I

the suspendéd sentence be- revoked and thie.above: named defendant be required to serve
of fhe original sentence; and/or pay 1

‘O the:suspended sentence be revoked and the abiove fiamed defendant’be requured loseve . monthsfyears uﬁhe odgmal
‘santénce andfor pay § ; thereupon to be relnstated on probation, subject to the: conditions’ setforth in thé aﬁached
order-and not inconsistent with:this order.

O theabove named defendant is: continued:on probation as provided for inthe: original-genterice, subject to the condmuns setiorth -
therein and-not Inconsistent: with this:grder.

-k
0. probation is reduced to time senjed.under supervision and the defendant is-dischargéd from supervision on this daﬁaa_
G- ttieabova named defendant is placed ofvactive elestronic:monitoring pursuaritio §23-3-540 (mandatory if conyicfed of first: degree
crithinal.sexual-conduct with 8 mincr o lewd- act discretionary if convicted of anyother: applicablé séx offense agalnst aminor.
ﬁ( Financial -Obhg_a_llpn_s.:- Order satisfies: %epanment fees (orreatoge) ‘Clvil judgmant: 1 Department fees
nes and other fees (awsasogajizlence) O Finés and other-feas
£ Restitulion (and.20%), (eneaingetbalonce) O Restitution (and20%)

‘0 Additional Conditions ordered: by the-Court::

11 Thedafendantis given credit for pré-tevocation: hearing detention ime on current probation violation t6 be-calculated and appile
by-the SC Degartimeit of Comeclions.

2( The defendant has previously served, I qgon&hsfyeafs on this seritenge.
(split sentence limo andfor prior. partiaj ravogation Ime)

The defendant waspreviously placed on active electronic moniloring pursuant ] §,23-§ -540.

Thl;./Lf dayot ,—7[77 {
(‘ Zw

This ls:ta GarIW'thal 1 hadgirend, oF hava ned lead 10- -mg, the order'and the condiflong g6t out Jheroln. i pgree.to comgly Wik such nondwans and: |f|e oonditions af- rny -atigched

probation otder: duvlng ihe pariod of my probation.. | have rocdls " gopy.of this:Court's’ ‘atdar-and. ali ahachmams

Offender’s-Signature ’ Witngssed by

Sighisd this- day of: oy yat . R
Day. T MeatwW © Yvaar " -Cily:

‘DPPRS Form @ {Slock)  ‘Revision: D Revision Date 09:01-2p19 LCopy Distributions:. White-Clark of Coun; YeliowiSCDE: PIik-Olfender Fild; Gold-Offdndar




28

FORM 5
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) “ - ‘ ]
Ao . ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
C’ounty"of',GR@\/ Urll )
JERRY. W STEWART )
Fuill nase afid prison namber (if any) of Applicart. ) 20
V. ) .
) APPLICATION FOR"%
) =
State of South Carolina ) POST-CONVICTION REEBIEF:
) .
) =
) w
[
(e«

INSTRUCTIONS - READ CAREFULLY

In order for this application to receive consideration by the Court, it shall be i in writing (legibly
handwrittén or typewritten), signed by the applicant and verified (notarized), and it shall set forth i
concise form the answers to each applicable question.. If necessary;:applicant may furnish his answer to a
particular questionon the reverse side of the page or-on an additional page. Applicatit shall make clear to
which question any such continued answer refers.

Since every apphcanon must be sworn under oath, any false statement of ‘a material fact therein
may serve.as the basis of prosecution and coriviction for perjury.. Applicants should, therefore; exercise
care to.assure that all anSwers are trité-and correct,

If the application is taken in forma pauperis, it shall include an affidavit (attached at the back of
the form) setting forth. information which establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and
costs:of the proceedmgs When the application is completed the ofiginal shall be mailed to the Clerk of
Court for the County in which the applxcant was convicted,

1. Place-of detenition /’/1‘ y(I /5 /é OL@ @ﬂ-éi/ﬁ[w)lo PDI
RTDGEVZILE 8.¢ 39472

2, ‘Name and location of Court’ whxch imposed sentence 5 f CAS r UO/Q T/’/ - 1 )

GRee VILLE €.¢. 2950/

3 ‘Name(s) of co-defendant(s) (if any) N / /a

4. The indictment number or numbers.(if known) upon which and the offenises for which
séntence was imposéd:
@ -GS A3-jols  Biss METH -
® 15-G5-23~02k2b MAMUF DIST. METY.

1
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©

The date upon which sentence was imposed and the terms of the sentence:

@ B 2016 PRopATIN YTLATTIN T0.3 YEAR

® [“4l6 o -SysPENDAN To SVEARS £montHs FRBATIN
© _
Check whether a finding of guilty was made:

(a) aftera plea of guilty Yes

(b)  after aplea of not guilty A/ / A

(c) aftera plea of nolo contendere 7/_1_/ / ﬂ '

Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of sentence?

O, I REQUESTEY) LouMSEL To Frl-g ARPEAL-

If you answered “yes” to (7), list:

(a)  the name of each Court to which you appealed:
i.
i, M/7A

ii.

(b)  the result in each such Court to which you appealed:

i, MN/A

(c) the date of each such result:

i, M/A

(d)  ifknown, citations of any written opinioh or orders entered pursuant to such
results:

i.

ii. jA/ / 74

If you answered “no” to (7), state your reasons for not so appealing:

@ Louwsel FACER 1o Do HrS Purl,

)
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10.

11,

12.

13.

(©

State concisely the grounds on which you base your allegation that you are being held in

custody unlawfully:

(a) 521‘[3(;)2&:[ [Z!ﬁl (’Q ;g 13 SZZICZ AZQZ l’ZéS =)
(b) INEFAET IV ASSISTANCE o F Co MSEL
y FALLuRe 7o oRd _/_[ Q@ SUPPRESS ggmﬁgME
State concisely and in the same order the facts which support each of the grounds set out
in (10):
@ _SEE ATTAHMEMT FACT:
®» _SEE ATTACH MeENT FACTS.
© S _ATTACH MENT FACTS
Prior to this application have you filed with respect to this conviction:
(a)  any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law? A/ /ﬁ
(b)  any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post-convictions
relief? __ A / A
(c) any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other than petitions,
if any, already specified in (8)? [U J 74;
(d)  any other petitions, motions or applications in this or any other Court? _A/ /Z i

If you answered “yes" to any part of (12), list with respect to each petition, motion or

application:
(a) the specific nature thereof:
i

i, MIA

iv.

(b)  the name and location of the Court in which each was filed:

i /U 1A

iv.




ATTACHMEY T FAcs 3

THIS TWOserment Mo, ) s gs-gx- 02626 Do WoT STATE,

STATE dwd. OFFEMSE: So THE CouRT DX NoT HAVE gi4prs-
- DICTIoN To SEWTENCE OEFEWOANT To awd offzuse,
AVD Counsel TS EMFFECTEVE oF ASSISTANCE. FoR FALLurE
To oBIECTI AND THE InQOTeTMENT DoES Nol” HAVE THE

DATE onN IT.As WHEN IT WAS TRus BILL, AND UNDER
317-19-30 S.C.CH0E STAIES, AN INDICTMENT I'S DEEMEP SuFFIIENT
wHERE, IN BDPITIoN 1o ALLEGATIoNS ASTo TIME AND PlAcE,

" AS REQUIRED BY [Awh IN THIS INDIcTMENT IT OoES
NoTl' STATE WHERE TN GREENYILLE CounTY THIS Took PLAE,
THLS LEFT THE GRAVD JuRY To SPECUlATE oN ESSENTIAL

ELEMENTS, THE GRAVD GuRY IS NEVER To BE LEFT TO SPEcu-

L ATE. THE couRy Loses JuRLsDLeTioN, SuBJecT MATTER

JuRrsnrertoN MmAY BE RAISED AT AVY TIME CARTER v STAIE
399 $.C.355,495 S.£.0.0 773 L1998]

ENEFFC e ASSIs TANCE

A DEFE DANT WHo RLEADS G TY on THE ADYZcE of
counSEL. mMAY onlY ATTACK THE Vol un TARY ANVO INTELL-
IHENT  CHARACTER OF THE WLEA B) sHwmG L [,7 THAT
COUNSEL REPRESENTATION FFLL BElow AN oBIECTIVE
STANDARD of REASoN ABLENESS AnO L2 THAT THERE
IS A REASWABLE PRoBABLITY THAT BuT FoR counsels
ERRORS, THE DEFENOANT oulD NoT HAVE PLEADED GuIlT)
BuT WoulD HAVE INSISTED om GoING 76 TRIAL. Wol FF /
STAIE 396 SC 158 485 £ 20 367019977 AccoRp HrtL
Vo L ek HART 474 U, S, 22, lob S.CT, 366,881,650 2D 903
L 195557 Tirry Stewary
PAGE |- of 9. DEFENOANT

i




32 "ATTACHMENT FACIS?

Coupsel FALLED To oBJECT 76 THE £n HANCEMENT T6 2ND
OFFENSE. oR PROFPERLY PRESERVE T FoR APPEAL, THEN A
PRoFER clazm ©s THAT counsSEL wAS INEFFECTTVE For
FAILING 16 OBOE-T OR PRoPERLY IRESZRUE THE ISsus
DEFENDANTE EA oF GuILTY WAS NoT FREELY AnD
Volun TARILY GIvEN, THE Sentemc tnG CouRT WAS WITH-~

“ouT JURIs DI2TIoN To ImASE THE SENTENCE.
STAE ¥, GRIM 3%/ S.c. 63 533 S.E 2D 399L9000] THES CoUR]

HAS 10 HAVE EVIOENTIARY HEARING To DETERMWE WHETHER
THE CouRT HpD SuBJFeT MATTER JuR £sDXe Txon. AuDER oy
V STATE 333 S.C. 629, 597 S.£.20 398 LCT) APP, Q000

WHERE p DEFEOANT ENTERS A GuUILTY PLEA ufon) coumses
ADVICE, THE VoL uNTARINESS oF THE PLEA DEPEWMDS o p
WHETHER T HE APILCE WAS WITHIN THE RANGE oF com P~
E TENCE DEMAVDED OF ATToRNENS TN o RrmxnAl cAsEs,
THE TZi/OT PART” STAVD ARD ADo PTED v STR L KLAND V.
WASHING ol %5 (1S 666 FoR EVALUATING cLAIms of
INEFFECTIVE ASSTSTANCE OF Coupsel. REQ urRinG
THAT THE DEFEMDAVY SHow THAT coypsel s REPRESENT-
“ATIoN [2]1 SELow AN oBIEETIUE sTAVDARD o F REAsoN~
~ABLENESS, AND THAT THERE 'S A REAS0N ABLL PRo GAG-
"‘—71/1 77 71 Hﬁf 54T FoR connsel. & up PRoFiss 1o AL FRRORS
THE RESulT o F THE PROCEEDING WoulD HAYE BECY
DIFFERENT APPLIES 16 GurlrY PLEA CHALLENGES BASE oN
INEFFECTIVE ASSIS TAWCE o F CaullSEl~ FoR THESE REASBS
THIS SEN TEMCE SHoulD BE VACATED AND Repor D cLEARED

RGES
OFCH/}RG[ Jarfs é}‘zwmff
PRGE 0.0F.4. DEFEYOANT




14,

15.

33

(c) the disposition thereof:

i, M/A

(d) the date of each such disposition:

e A

iv.

(e)  ifknown, citations of any written opinions or orders entered pursuant to each such
disposition:
i

i, _ M/A

iii.

iv.

Has any ground set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or any other Court,

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed?

NO _EFrRsT BIE of THE APRE

If you answered “yes” to (14) identify:

(a) which grounds have been presented:
i

. MIA

b) the proceedings in which each ground was raised:
i
i, MlA

Revised 3/2003
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16.

17.

18.

If any ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or
Federal, set forth the ground and state concisely the reasons why such ground has not
previously been presented:

@ _FLRsT Txme onN PCR

(b
(©)

Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of:

(a)  your arraignment and plea? YE S

(b)  yourtrial, if any? N / A

(¢)  yoursentencing? Yé.s

(d  yourappeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of

sentence? oY MS['L /’/d.L—ZL‘)U 7o Do /')_L/S Ddﬂ

(e)  preparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or

applications with respect to this conviction, which you filed?
1A

If you answered “yes” to one or more parts of (17), list:

(@) the name and address of each attorney who represented you:

i ToHN CRAGLE
PuBLIL NEFFMDER
i _ (R ILLE <G Q9%0l

iii.

(b)  the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

P/EA AND SenrEncTnG

iii.

Revised 3/2003
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19,  State clearly the relief you seek in filing this application:

To VACATE SENIENCE. AMND CLEAR RECORD

20.  Are you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged?

NOy

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) VERIFICATION

County of BER /<;ZEY )
I, c-)/g RRY W ﬁy /VE SJ:E wWAR )/ 0'25 5 ?]3 , being duly sworn

upon my oath, depose and say that I have subscribed to the foregoing application; that I know the
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and
allegations therein set forth are true.

Ty V/)/ Mt wg i

th
SWORN to and Y‘s/r(t;j{:ribed before me this \%

dayof __- R .
Y (3
B&t AT (L.S)
Notary Public
My Commission Expires: J)Q"/
LISA M, CROSS

Notary Public, State of South Carolina
My Commission Explres 1/18/2024

Revised 3/2003



APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT

IN SUPPORT TER;%F57 73
L_ (2 5 EE_}/ W/‘] y NE STEWART _, hereby apply for leave to

proceed in this action without prepayment of feés or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application I declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

(1)  Iam the applicant in this action and I believe I am entitled to redress.

(2)  Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give
security thereof,

IZ,N%(/ o warT

Applicant

SWORN or affirmed tqQ and subscribed before me this
\%Wd .&

£ Y'lan ,
gﬁa {v L (\n. oM
Notary Public

=
My Commission Expires: %@Lﬂ \ (Q M

LISA M. CROSS
Notary Publlo, Stato of South Cerolna
My Commission Explres 1/1612024

Revised 3/2003



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) OF THE THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
)
Jerry W. Stewart, _ ) Case No.: 2016-CP-23-2182
S.C.D.C. No. 265973, )
)
Applicant, )
) RETURN AND PARTIAL
v. ) MOTION TO DISMISS'
)
State of South Carolina, )
)
Respondent. )
)

In response to Applicant’é post-conviction relief application filed April 1, 2016,

Respondent would show this Court:
\ L

Applicant is incarcerated with the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to
the Greenville County Clerk of Court’s orders of commitment. The December 2012 term of the
Greenville County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for possession of methamphetamihe (2012-GS-
23-010115). Applicant pled guilty to this charge, as indicted, on September 17, 2013. The
Honorable William H. Seals Jr. sentenced Applicant to three (3) years confinement, provided
that with credit one day of time served, the Balance was to be suspended with probation for two
years.

The April 2015 term of the Greenville County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for

manufacturing methamphetamine 2™ offense (2015-_GS-23-002626). Applicant was represented

by John Crangle.

! Respondent requests that Applicant be appointed counsel.

C.A. No. 2016-CP-23-2182: Page 1 of 8

37
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On January 14, 2016, Applicant pled guilty to the manufacturing methamphetamine
charge as indicted. Applicant’s probation for the possession charge wés also revoked on January
14, 2016, for violating terms of his probation on September 11, 2015, The Honorable J. Cordell
Maddox sentenced Applicant to ten (10) years’ imprisonment, provided that upon service of
three (3) years, the balance is suspended with probation for six months. The Court credited
Applicant with 191 days’ of time served, and this sentence is to run concurrent to the sentence
imposed for Applicant violating the terms of his probation. Judge Maddox revoked his original
probationary sentence for the possession charge and ordered Applicant to serve two (2) years and
365 days’ of the remainder of his probation sentence. Applicant did not appeal his convictions
or sentences. |

IL.
In his application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges he is being held in custody

unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. “Subject matter jurisdiction not vested.”
2. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
3. “Failure to object to or suppress evidence.”

Respondent denies Applicant is entitled to relief on these claims, and demands strict
proof thereof. Any claims not specifically enumerated in the application or amendments thereto
will be opposed by Respondent at the evidentiary hearing. Ail amendments should be made well
iﬁ advance of hearing and should be filed in compliance with Rule 11, SCRCP.

Attached to this return and incorporated herein are the records of the Greenville County
Clerk of Court regarding the subject conviction, and Applicant's records from the South Carolina

Department of Corrections and the records of this action. Any records not attached will be
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forwarded upon receipt. Respondent reserves the right to amend this return upon receipt of any

relevant materials.

I

Applicant alleges that the sentencing court lacked subject matter jurisdiction due to
defects in his indictment. Defects in the indictment do not affect subject matter jurisdiction. See
State v. Gentry, 363\S.C. 93, 610 S.E.2d 494 (2005); U.S. v. Cotton, 535 U.S. 625, 122 S.Ct.
1781 (2002). The indictment is a notice document, and any challenges to its sufficiency must be
made in accordance with S.C. Code Ann. § 17-19-90 (2003). See also S.C. Code § 17-19-20
(2003). Subject matter jurisdiction is the power of a court to hear a particular class of cases, and
it has nothing to do with the indictment document. See Gentry, 363 S.C.. 93, 610 S.E.2d 49%4;

Dove v. Gold Kist, Inc., 314 S.C. 235, 442 S.E.2d 598 (1994).

In post-conviction relief, an applicant wishing to raise challenges to the sufﬁcienéy of an
indictment must do so in the context of ineffective assistance of counsel, basically alleging that
his trial counsel failed to properly move to quash the indictment in accordance with S.C. Code
Ann. § 17-19-90. A claim of this nature is subject to the procedural bars in the Uniform Post-
Conviction Procedure Act — notably the statute of limitations and successiveness. See S.C. Code
§§ 17-27-45 and -90.

| An applicant may still challenge the subject matter jurisdiction of the trial court, and such
a claim is one that may be raised at any time. See Brown v. State, 343 S.C. 342, 540 S.E.2d 846
(2001), overruled in part by Gentry, 610 S.E.2d 494. However, "[c]ircuit courts obviously have
subject matter jurisdiction to try criminal matters.” Gentry, 610 S.E.2d 494; See also S.C. Const.

Art. V, § 7. Therefore, Applicant must present evidence that his case is of some class over which
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the circuit court does not have the authority to preside. Respondent contends that Applicant's
conviction involved a criminal chargé in General Sessions Court, and thus asserts that the circuit
court had proper subject matter jurisdiction.

IvV.

Respondent submits Applicant’s allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel is without

merit. Respondent asserts Applicant’s attorney rendered effective assistance well within the

standard of “reasonableness within professional norms” for a defense attorney.

Where ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged as a ground for relief, Applicant must
prove that “counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process
that the trial cannot be relied on as having produced a just result.” Strickland v. Washington, 466
U.S. 668, 686, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2064 (1984); Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 442, 334 S.E.2d 813,
814 (1985).

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation

- within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume counsel

“rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066. Applicant must
overcome this presumption in order to receive relief. See Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, i 18, 386
S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989).

A two-pronged test is used in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel.
First, Applicant must prove counsel’s performance was deficient. Unde‘r this prong, attorney

performance is measured by its “reasonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v.

‘State, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, 104 S. Ct. at
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20655. Second, counsel’s deficient performance must have prejudiced Applicant such that “there
is a reasonable probabﬂity that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the
proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A
reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of
trial” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182, 186, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 .(1997) (citing Strickland v.
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984)).

Respondent submits Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland v.
Washington test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises
questions of fact that cannot be conclusively réfuted by the record. Respondent requests an
evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 265, 305
S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) (citing Norman v. State, 276 S.C. 278, 277 S.E.2d 707 (1981)).

V.

Respondent interprets Applicant’s allegation regarding failure to suppress evidence as an

allegation of an involuntary guilty plea based on the facts in support of this allegation.
Respondent submits that any allegation that Applicant’s guilty plea was involuntary is without
merit. In post-conviction relief cases, an applicant asserting a constitutional violation must
frame the issue as oﬁe of ineffective assistance of counsel. Al-Shabazz, 338 S.C. at 363-64, 527
S.E.2d at 747 (citing Drayton v. Evatt, 312 S.C. 4, 430 S.E.2d 517 (1993); Hyman v. State, 278
S.C. 501, 299 S.E.2d 330 (1983); Richardson v. State, 310 S.C. 360, 426 S.E.2d 795 (1993)). An
applicant who pleads guilty on the advice of counsel may collaterally attack the plea only By
showing that (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) there is a reasonable probability that but for

counsel's errors, the defendant would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to
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trial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001) (citing Hill v. Lockhart, 474
U.S. 52; Jackson v. State, 342 SC 95,535 S.E.2d 926 (2000); Thompson v. State, 340 S.C. 112,
531 S.E.2d 294 (2000); Rayford v. State, 314 S.C. 46, 443 S.E.2d 805 (1994)). An applicant
alleging that his guilty plea was induced by ineffective assistance of counsel must prove that
counsel"s advice wés not "within the competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases." Hill
V. Lockhart, 474 U.S. at 56. “A guilty plea is a solemn, judicial admission of the truth of the
charges” against the applicant. Dalton v. State, 376 S.C. 130, 137, 654 S.E.2d 870, 874 (Ct.
App. 2007) (citing Blackledge v. Allison, 431 U.S. 63 (1977)). Admissions “made during a
guilty plea should be considered conclusive unless [an applicant] presents valid reasons why he
should be allowed to depart from the truth of his statements.” Id. at 137-38, 654 S.E.2d at 874
(citing Crawfdrd v. United States, 519 F.2d 347 (4th Cir. 1975); Edmonds v. Lewis, 546 F.2d
566 (4th Cir. 1976)).

Respondent submits the record fully supports the knowing and voluntary nature of
Applicant's plea. However, allegations regarding the voluntariness of the plea may raise
questions of fact the record does not conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respondent requests an
evidentiary hearing on this allegation. Sharper, 279 S.C. 264, 305 S.E.2d 247.

VI

To the extent Applicant’s allegations touch on the validity of his 2012 guilty plea for
possession of methamphetamine, it should be summarily dismissed for failure to comply with the
filing procedures of the Uniform Post-Conviction Procedure Act. S.C. Code Ann, §17-27-10 to
—160. S.C. Code Ann. §17-27-45(a) reads as follows:

An application for relief filed pursuant to this chapter must be filed
within one year after the entry of a judgment of conyiction or
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within one year after the sending of the remittitur to the lower
court from an appeal or the filing of the final decision upon an
appeal, whichever is later. :

The South Carolina Supreme Court has held that the statute of limitations shall apply to
all applications filed after July 1, 1996. Peloquin v, State, 321 S.C. 468, 469 S.E.2d 606 (1996).
The Applicant pled guilty to that offense on September 17, 2013, and did not appeal. Therefore,
the Applicant was required to file his application by September 18, 2014. This Application was
filed on April 1, 2016, which was well after the statutory filing period had expired.

A motion for summary judgment may properly be used to raise the defense of statute of
limitations. McDonnell v. Consolidated School District of Aiken, 315 S.C. 487, 445 S.E.2d 638
(1994). In addition, S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(c) (1985) authorizes the Court to "grant a
motion by either party for summary disposition of [an] application when it appears from the
pleadings ... that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to
judgment as a matter of law." Therefore, the Respondent requests that any allegations

challenging the validity of Applicant’s 2012 guilty plea be summarily dismissed for failure to file

within the time mandated by the Post-Conviction Procedure Act.

[Signature follows)
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'WHEREFORE; having made its: Return, Respondent requests that courisel be appointed
aid aty évidentiary heating be held.
Respectfully submitted, .

ALAN WILSON
Attottiey General

JOHN W, McINTOSH.
Chief Deputy Attorney General

JOHANNAVALENZUELA.
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

PATRICK SCHMECKPEPER
Assistant Aftoiney General

ATTORNEYS'FOR RESPONDENT

Office-of the Attorhey General
Post Office Box 11549
Columbia, SC29211

August 29, 2016.
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STATE OF SOUTH €AROLINA

o | IN'THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

2016-CP:23-2182
JERRY W, STEWART, 265973

Applicant,

w l RBAVIT OF SERVICE B

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA,

Respondent.

1. Iam anemployee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action..

2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and' that this is a
proper circumstance of service by mail.

3. I have this day served a copy of the Return -and Partial Motion to Dismiss in the
above-captioned matter on the following person by depositing same. in the United States mail,
‘postage prepaid:

Jerry W. Stewart, 265973

- MacDougall Correctional Institution
1516.01d Gilliard Road
Ridgeville SC 29472

DATED this 29th day of August, 2016.

J, Legal Assistant
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- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )

Jerry Wayne Stewart,
TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

)
)
BApplicant, ) 2016-CP-23-2182
-vs-— )
. )
The State, )
' ) October 25, 2016
Respondent. ) Greenville, South Carolina

BEZFORE:

HONORABLE JOHN C. HAYES, III, JUDGE

APPEARANCE S:

BRIAN P. JOHNSON, ESQUIRE
Attorney for the Plaintiff

PATRICK L. SCHMECKPEPER, ESQUIRE
Attorney for the Defendant

Margaret A. Woods
Circuit Court Reporter
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MOTIONS AND MATTERS

THE COURT: All right.

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Your Honor, this is Jerry Stewart vs.
the State of South Carolina 2016—CP—23—21§2. The applicant
was indicted in December of 2012 for possession of .
methamphetamine, he pled guilty as indicted on Septémbef 17th
2013 represented by Mr. Crangle. Judge Seals sentenced the
applicant to 3 years confinement, I think tﬁat was Judge
Maddox.

MR. JOHNSON: 1It's, uh, ---

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Beg the Court's indulgencé. I
apologize, Your Honor, believe —-- appears there's a, uh, typo
on the, uh, retur -- State's responsive pleadings but he was
sentenced by Judge Maddox to 3 years confinement provided
thét —— Your Honor, I believe there's a typo and there's
a ———

THE COURT: Well, yeah, I I ---

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: --- and ---
THE COURT: --- 1 I —--—-
MR. SCHMECKPEPER: --- confusion on the, uh, actual

responsive pleadings.

THE COURT: Well, I I ---

THE APPLICANT: Well yes, sir.

THE COURT: --- not saying anything derogatory about the
AG's office 'cause ya'll turn out ton of stuff but just like I
do with my paperwork and my law clerk we, you use wha -- we we

3
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MOTIONS AND MATTERS

don't reinvent the wheel, we use things we already have in the
pipeline and sometimes it's it's not completely unusual then
in typipg, uh, the typist will copying something else will
pick up, will make such errors, it's not, not saying it
happens not ever, very often but it it does happen.

Mﬁ. SCHMECK?EPER: And, Your Honor, I I believe the
correct sentence is he was s -- te -- sentenced to 10 years
suspend to 3 years and 6 months probation, um, this point I'll
turn it over to opposing counsel.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, sir, Your Honor. Uh, my client's

application it alleged, uh, essentially three different

‘things, the primary one that we're here on today is is

ineffective assistance counsel as alleged generally. Uh,
after speaking with my client I I think he essentially wants
to allege that, uh, that he and the, uh, his attorney didn't
go over his discovery, uh, he also has an an an issue, uh,
that he'd like to pursue regards to the indictment as as far
as him being able to be enhanced ---

THE COURT: No.

MR. JOHNSON: --- and, uh, we ask if, uh, if I might call
him to the stand and go over those issues at this time.

THE COURT: All right, please come up and be sworn.

(Whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)

THE CLERK: Mr. Stewart, step over here (indicating) to

4
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

\

the witness booth and place your left hand on the Bible and
raise your right hand.

(Whereupon, the applicant came forward.)

(Whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)

JERRY WAYNE STEWART, having been

first duly sworn, tesfified as foilows:

THE CLERK: Thank you, you may be seated.

THE OFFICER: Please speak loud.

THE CLERK: Please state your full name for the record.

THE APPLICANT: Jerry Wayne Stewart.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. All right. Mr. Stewart, can I help you with your
paperwork?
A. Uh,

(Whereupon,‘a discussion was held off the record.)
Q. All right.
A. Uh, ---
Q. All right, hold on, Mr. Stewart, let me ask you
questions, I just want to help you get to your paperwork,

okay.

A. Uh-huh. I'm just lookin' to see what I need to get here.

That's my expulsion papers. This is them.
Q. Mr. Stewart, are you ready?
A. Uh, just second, sir.
(Whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)

5
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

Okay, I've got everything that I need.
Q. Okay. ©Now, uh, Mr. Stewart, you are currently serving
what sentence?
A. I'm serving sentence for a probation violation and a
second offense for manufacturin' meth.

Q. And, uh, who was your attorney?

A. Uh, John Cringle [sic].
Q. Now the sentence was it imposed after a a violation

hearing in a, uh, in a trial or was it imposed after a plea?
A. Uh, it was, I I gave a plea but nothin' that, huh, I was
supposed to been gettin' I got so the,-you know, and\I, and I
I give the plea actually with the rest, I didn't, I I didn't
want to plead guilty but I felt I didn't have any choice in
the matter.

Q. Now now before you pled guilty and and to confirm you're
serving a a 1l0-year sentence on the service of 3 years
followed by probation, is that correct?

A. Uh, vyes, sir, that -- well, that was for the

manufacturing meth, ---

Q. Okay.

A. --- it wasn't for fhe probation.

Q. What are you serving for the probation?

A. Uh, I got 2 years, uh, probation suspended for 3 years,

uh, for the probation. I, actually on September I was
actually through with probation when they re -- when they

6
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON &

tried to, uh, revoke it and the reason that they revoked it
was because they said I didn't, uh, make my appointments and I
didn't pay the fees and I resisted the take a drug tést which
I did not resist to take a drug test, my probation officer
asked me one time if I, the whole time I known if I'd take, if
I could pass a drug test, f said bring it on, I don't even
take my medicines for diabetés or nothin' else so bring it on
and he refused to take it then, he told me,'I'll give you one
next time, but I've got warrants that kept comin' up because
people kept puttin' warrants against me for things that I
didn't do and I've I've got expungement papers right here
(indicating) where I've had charges expunged that they used to
enhance my charge that I have now and, uh, uh, you can't use
no, uh, pa, uh, charge that's been expunged to enhance socmeone
charges.

Q. Well well first let me ask you a question. Um, before
your, a plea of guilty did ---

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Your Honor, at at this point I'd just
like to object to this allegation on the grounds for that it
it's not the initial pleadings, I haven't heard of it and I
may not be prepared to go forward on this specific ground and
I haven't, I haven't gotten copies of certified convictlons,
uh, so I I'd request that either this be, the applicant be
precluded from going forward on this or and, or I be given the
opportunity to leave the record open, leave the record open.

7
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

THE COURT: All right, now what, mean, what is, what are
you covering now? Which -- this -- the, uh, ---

MR. JOHNSON: This is his, ---

THE COURT: --- enhanéement?

MR. JOHNSON: --- this is his enhan -- hancement issue,
Judge, that he he'a like to, uh,

THE APPLICANT: Uh, would Your Honor, would you —--

THE COURT: Well I ---

MR. JOHNSON: Ho ---

THE COURT: -—— I -—-

MR. JOHNSON: --- hold on, Jerry.

THE -APPLICANT: --- like to see this?

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: And s -- and simply, Your Honor, just

depending on how the testimony unfolds I'd like the
opportunity to and to present Your Honor with certified
convictions.

MR. JOHNSON: Well well, Judge, he did allege it in his
application, it is in there.

THE COURT: But he alleges the subject matter
jurisdiction not vested, ineffective assisted counsel, failure
to object or suppress the evidence then in, uh, his attachment
talks about jurisdiction, ineffective assistance counsel.

MR. JOHNSON: ©On that, uh, second page of those
attachment facts, Judge, that second page at at the top is
counsel failed to object to the enhancement second offense is

8
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

where he puts that.

THE COURT: All right, well I'11 I'll let him go into it
with the, uh, State having the right to, uh, supplement thé
record with convictions ---

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Thank Your Honor.

THE COURT: --- keeping in ﬁind that the burden of proof
is on the applicant in the first place so you may proceed.

MR. JOHNSON: All right, thank Your Honor.

BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Uh, before you go into your enhancement issue,

Mr. Stewart, ---

A. That's —--—-

Q. -—-- uh, did, uh, you and your counsel go over your di,
your discovery with you?

A. Uh, I never saw the discovery, I I I never had anything
till I's wrote the Court and got the stuff to put in for this
PCR, actually I didn't even know anything about a PCR until

my attorney came to me after the case and told me as soon as I
hit the yard anywhere or wherever I go go as straight as I can
to the law library and put in for a PCR and he told me to use
him as, uh, ins -- inefficient a counsel because the judge had
lied to him, he didn't do what he said he was gonna do, he
aint, he didn't, uh, sentence me the way he was supposed to, I
mean, if if he had I would be gettin' out in just a few days,
I would be maxin' out if the sent -- if judge had a sentenced

9
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

me the way he said he was going to sentence me but the way he
sentenced me I I've got time till 2018 plus I've got 2 years
after that of supervised and 6 months prokation that I

would -- wasn't discussed between me and my attorney when he
offered me this plea, this was a Alford plea from the judge
and, uh, I think Mr. Créngle should, uh, testify what the
judge did.

0. Okay. ©Now with your enhancément issue, uh, I believe you
said you was enhanced to a, to a second offense wrongly, you
don't believe that was done ---

A. Sir.

Q. —-—- properly?

A, Yes, sir. Uh, the warrant that I received was for first

offense of, uh, manufa -- excuse me, manufacturin' drugs, uh,
the the indictment that I have and it -- I, well personally I
don't even think this ever went before the grand jury because
there's so many things wrong with it. First of all, the in --
the face a the indictment has been changed, the code numbers
have been changed and written over in pen and I know the grand
jury wouldn't a done that. The grand, uh, the the foreman of
grand jury where it is signed with what's supposed to be her
name or his name, it's sposed, uh, have the verdict that they
put under, it don't have that, it don't have a date where it
had, where they done it and then on, uh, in the indictment it
doesn't state anywhere that this happened, it says Greenville

10
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

County, Greenville County's a very big place, it don't say
anything about where this happened, whether it happened in a
church, a beer joint, uh, somebody's house, on the side a the
road, it doesn't say anything, that left the grand jury to
speculate on essential én elements, that's what, that's where
that comes in and you're never to leavé the grand jury to
speculate at any time. Okay, I've got a, uh, an order from
Jean Toal, the Supreme Court Justice, stating that any
document like this (indicating) has to go through the clerk a
court and be clock stamped, it's never been.clock stamped so
therefore Jean Toal says that that it don't happen anymore
since he made that order and,-uh, that the indictment is not
re —-- indemal (phonetic) in court, wherever you, ﬁh, however
you say that, I'm not a lawyer, but, uh, it's not supposed to
be used against me if it's not been clock stamped and, uh,
someone has went before the grand jury and told an untruth,
they swore before the grand jury on this, uh, first offense,
that's what's on the indictment 'cause it don't say first,
second, or third, so it has to be construed as the first
offense and it's it, like I said, it's been enhanced but it
shouldn't have been and, uh, uh, I mean, that that's, that,
there there's probly a couple other things about the
indictment that I, that I can't even figure out.

Q. Now as far as the enhancement, the second offense it, is
it your testimony that there was no underlying drug offense or

11
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

otherwise that they could have used to make this a second
offense?
A. I, wéll, I was unaware of anything that they could use.
I, now the probation that I was on was for a drug offense, I I
pled guilty to that charge because the judge was gonna give me
2 years probation. I told hiﬁ I wasn't guilty but and he
started to withdraw my plea but I said, No, I wanna go through
with it 'cause, you know, it's 2 years probation, I'm not
goin' to prison, I'm I'm happy with that and, uh, and, you
know, I I would be happy, you know, get outta prison today if
they overturn the drug charge and give me time served for the
probation, that would be finé with me today but, you know, and
I, and I go my way, the State goes theirs and, uh, you know,
we'd never meet again but that's and that's the reason I'm
here, I'd I'd like to get this thing overturned and get outta
prison.
Q. All right. I'm gonna ask you to answer the questions
that the attorney general has, okay?
A. Okay.

THE COURT: All right, he brought up somethin' that I
need to make, clarify with him.

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, sir, Your Honor.
EXAMINATION BY THE COURT:
Q. You understand that if I grant you your relief, you say
you and State would never cross paths again, I believe that's

12
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JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

incorrect because if I overturn your conviction you'll simply
be subject to being retried or tried, uh, on this charge, that
is, I can't make, I can't make this charge go away, all I can
do is, uh, send it back for a reconsider or not
reconsideration but, uh, set it aside so that the whole
process starts again and you'd be subject to'being tried or
entering a plea so I just want you to not not be under the
impression that ---

A. Okay.

Q. -—-— even 1f I agree a hundred percent with you, I can't
just wipe the slate clean, put you in a position where you and
the State never cross paths again.

A. Um, well I I didn't exactly mean it that way, Your Honor,
I was, and and the way I was tryin' to state it is if the
attorney general is willing to drop the case after it's, if
it's overturned and he's willing to drop this, forgets me and,
uh, accept my time served on probation and and, yéu know, that

that's what I was talkin' about, Your Honor, I wasn't ---

Q. Well ---
Al —-—— gonna go —-—-
Q. ~-—— just just to follow up, the attorney general couldn't

do that if they wanted to because if you prevail, if you win,
attorney generél's outta the picture, the case goes back to

the solicitors, Greenville Thirteenth Circuit solicitor, uh,
Mr. Wilkins' office for them to decide what to do and course

13




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

59

JERRY WAYNE STEWART - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

they're not present today and so, uh, they can't make you any
guarantee, uh, what they would do but I can't, well I can g —--
I can guess what they would probly do but I don't,

speculating's not a good idea so ---

A. Yes, sir.

Q. -—— I just wanna make sure you.understand that aspect a
these.

A, Uh, but if this is overturned, I, that I could have a

bond and get out ---

Q. Well -

A. —-—— until I could ---

Q. ——- that be up to another judge, that wouldn't be up fo
me.

A. But I've —- I'll still be in prison is what you're
sayin'.

Q. No, I don't thi -- we we gettin' probly little bit outta

my, uh, I don't usually go behind what I do but but I think
what will happen would be that, uh, you would be moyed from
prison to the Greenville County Detention Center and that
whole process would start -again just as though you'd been
arrested the day before so you'd be in the detention center, I
believe you would be subject to; uh, uh, having a bond set,
whether one would be set or not is a course not up to me,
would be up to another judge but, uh, you, it's my
understanding you would not be held in prison, you'd be sent

14
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back to Greenville County for the process to start over.

A. Uh, I understand, Your Honor.
Q. Okay.

A. Thank you.

0. Yes, sir.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHMECKPEPER: . .
Q. Morning, Mr. Stewart, just have a couple quick questions

for you, uh, and I just, first I wanna clarify what your

~allegations are. Uh, now you said that your counsel never

reviewed discovery with you?

A. Uh, I never saw, I I'm sayin' I never saw anything that
the other side had against me, I mean, any evidence or
anything, I mean, I was told that they had a a thing of of,
uh, that it's, well it says chemicals but I had one chemical
that was, uh, drain cleaner and, uh, it it wasn't to make
meth, it was to clean a drain out so and, uh, said sumtin’
about a tube, that I had a a bottle cap with a tube in it, I I
don't know what I'd.a used it fof but I was usin' it to put
oil in my moped and, uh, as far as, uh, little baggies, I got
these little baggies that I had, they were little tiny and I
thought they was cute. My nephew éells stuff at the flea
market and he was puttin' earrings in these little baggies and
I asked him could I have a few of 'em, I mean, I I had no
intention a usin' 'em, I just thought that they was kinda cute
and I know he wasn't usin' 'em for nothin' like that 'cause I
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sit and I watchin' him but the earrings in, staple 'em on the

board, take it to flea market.

Q. But you got this information from your attorneys.

A. Say —---

Q. This information your attorney told you?

A. That's, you know, I —-- that that's wﬁat he said they had

against me, I mean, I mean, I I never saw it until I received

all this from the Court. -

Q. So you you did meet with your attorney, is that fair to
say?

A. I what?

Q. You did meet with your attorney, is that ---

A. Oh, vyes, sir —---

Q. —-—-- correct, that's ---

A. -——= I I ---

Q. --- Crangle?

A. --— met, I met with my attorney, every time I come to

court he asked me if I wanna plead guilty and I said no.

Q. And he told you what the, what the State had against

you?

A. He said, well what my attorney told me was if I asked you
to make corn bread and you don't have any corn meal, how you
gonna make corn bread so I took it as, huh, you know, I don't
have the stuff to make meth, well how am I supposed to be
makin' meth?

16




62

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JERRY WAYNE STEWART - CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHMECKPEPER

Q. So what what you're saying is even if he didn't show you
the actual physical papers the State had, he did tell you the
evidence that they had against you.

A. I don't ---

Q. Even if you, even if you dispute that evidence, he did
tell you what it was.

A. Well and not not in that many words, no, he he he said
they've got a good case or or sumtin' like that and I said how
can they have a case, I mean, I had no drugs, I had no, uh,
no, nothin' to make, nothin' to manufacture, I was ridin' down
the road on a moped so, uh, I mean, we we didn't get get into
all that, he -- I -- he just, he thought, every time I seen
him he wanted me to plead guilty and at the end I, when he
offered me this deal that he talked to the judge and he said
he talked to the judge himself and that the solicitor was
gonna keep comin' at me and that she was gonna enhance this
another time and ca -- call it the third offense and I, I
mean, I've never had a first offense much less third offense
with, uh, you know, and I ended up taking this plea on my
lawyer's, he he's the one that asked me to take this plea
'cause if I didn't I'd I'd end up gettin' 30 years and I
didn't wanna do 30 years, I'm 61, almost 6l-years—-old now and,
uh, I don't think I can make 31 years in prison.

Q. And you're talking about, uh, theose little baggies didn't
have anything in 'em, the solicitor did . say during your guilty
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plea that those little baggies had methamphetamine in them, 1is
that correct?
A, Uh; that's that after the thing, yeah, he said that they

did have 'em, uh, meth in but they didn't.

Q. You agreed ---
A. I mean, —--
Q. —--—- to those facts, right?

A, Do what?

Q. Mean, you pled guilty under those facts, is that

correct?

A. I was told to tell the judge yes to everything, not to
bri ——-not bring up anything and, uh, -that, uh, the ju --

it -- the judge wouldn't sign sumtin' statin' that he promised
me this because, you know, he -- my my lawyer didn't wanna ask
the judge for that because he didn't think the judge would
tell him a lie and that all this came out after the, after
everything was said and done.

Q. So just just to clarify, your attorney told, your
attorney didn't show you any discovery and told you to lie to
the judge.

A. He he told me just to say yes, that's, uh, that's all, i
mean, because he trusted the judge and I trusted him at the
time and when he, the judge didn't do what he told me that the
judge was gonna do then that's when he came to me and told me
that, uh, if T didn't put in a PCR I would be in prison for a

18
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long time 'cause the judge did everything different from what
he 'said he would do.

Q. So turning to this indictment issue you're arguing that
it was wrongly enhanced because there were, there were
problems with the way that the indictment was presented, that
fair?

A. I'm wr -- I I'm sayin' that it was wrongly enhanced
because the grand jury sent down this indictment as a first

offense and, uh, the face of this indictment had been changed

completely.
Q. And just so, just so I'm sure, you did say that you were
on pr —- yeah, at that point you were on probation for a

previous drug offense?

A. I was on probation but I was sposed to have been off on
Septem -- in September, ---

Q. But that that was, ---

A. --- maybe ---

Q. --— but that was for a drug offense.

A. That was for the drug offense that I went to court and I
testified that yes, I was guilty because the ju —- had, like,

uh, like this the o -- the other, all, uh, lawyer that I had
told me to go in there and tell this man what what he wanted
to hear so that I would get this slap on the wrist with
probation.

Q. And that was possession of methamphetamines?
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A. Sir?
Q. Was that, was that prior offense possession a
methamphetamines?
A. Yes, it was.
Q. Thank you, I have no further questions.

MR. JOHNSON: Your Honor, I have no redirect.

THE COURT: All right you can step down, Mr. Stewart,
thank you.

(Whereupon, the applicant left the stand.)

(Whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)

MR. JOHNSON: Your Honor, that's the applicant's case.

THE COURT: All right. State.

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Your Honor, the State calls John
Crangle, the applicant's plea counéel.

(Whereupon, the witness came forward.)

THE CLERK: Mr. Crangle, ---

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE CLERK: --- please place your left hand on the Bible,
raise your right hand.

JOHN CRANGLE, having been first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

THE CLERK: Thank you, you may be seated.

THE COURT: Mr. Crangle, it's good to see you again. I
recall, uh, uh, ---

THE WITNESS: Yeah, the m ---
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THE COURT: --- doin' mock trial at Furman a couple years
ago.

THE WITNESS: Yeah, good to see you again, Judge.

THE COURT: Good to see you. Go ahead.

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Thank you, Judge.

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. SCHMECKPEPER:

Q. Good morning, Mr. Crangle.
A, Good morning.
Q. I just have a few brief questions for you, uh, just a

little bit a background information. Would you go over your
experience as a criminal defense attorney.

A. Yes. I went to, uh, Clemson for ﬁy undergraduate degree,
I went to Emory for(law school. I graduated in 2012, I passed
the bar and was licensed in November of 2012, uh, where I
joined the public defender's office, I had{been there as a law
clerk for two months prior to that and I served as a public

defender for four years, I'm currently in private practice.

Q. So you were a public defender in this case.

A. Yes.

Q. Now roughly how long did you have this case for?

A. According to my notes, uh, Mr. Stewart was>arrested on

December 27th 2013, um, that was on an unrelated manufacturin'
and distribution charge that was subsequently dismissed, he
was also arrested on that day for assault and battery in the
third degree in Greer and possession of drug paraphernalia.
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Um, I met him at the jail, it was assigned to our office on
January 7, 2014, um, and my earliest notes from January of
2014 indicated that I met with, um, that I met with him
sometime, my earliest notes would be January 15, 2014, I have
a note that I met with him, I just don't have a date beside it
as to when I first met with him but that was on a charge’tﬁat
was unrelated to this so with regards to this case he was
arrested on September 26, 2014 so I'd already represented him
and this was a new charge, the PCR charge is based off meth.
Q. Now with regards to this charge, did you file for,

receive discovery from the solicitor's office?

A. I did.

Q. And did you review that discovery?

A. I did and I also reviewed it with him, uh, ==

Q. Did you re ---

A. My -—- I'm sorry.

Q. —-—- review the physical packet with him?

A. Yes, I brought it down and_we read through it. He was, I

saw him on October 1st 2014, uh, 'cause he was arrested on the
2§th and I was notified that he was in the detention center.

I went and visited him on the 1lst and talked to him about his
charges. Um, we didn't have discovery, we had filed for it
and then according to my notes on 10/26/2014 my notes state JV
with D, that means jail visit with D, reviewed discovery on
new charges, that means we went through the discovery and
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talked about it and I can get into the facts of the case if
you like.

Q. -And if you could briefly go into what the facts were on
the State's evidence was against the applicant.

A, Mr. Stewart was arfesﬁed for driving on a moped, uh, law
enforcement was monitoring a known drug house, uh, they
watched Mr. Stewart leave the house. When he left the house,
he was driving erratically and crossing the double yellow line
and also toﬁching the fog lane, they activated their blue
lights. Their discovery indicates that there was no camera.
Um, when Mr. Stewart got off the moped, he consented to a
search of his moped. 1Inside of the center console of the
moped that he sits on, uh, there were several items located,
uh, there were some baggies with methamphetamine residue that
was drug tested and came back as methamphetamine residue,
there was no weight, there was also, um, numerous items that
they accused him of manufacturing methamphetamine witﬁ
including, uh, soda bottles and the tubing and batteries and
such things. There are pictures of that that I showed to him
and we discussed what it is for, that is part of, um, what he
was describing earlier to you. Um,'when I talked to him about
it, uh, I a -- we -- he obviously had the other case pending
at the time, I discussed what that case, how that would affect
this case. |

Q. Now I u -- I understand you can't read your client's
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minds, did you have any inclination that the applicant didn't
understand the State's evidence or the nature a the case
against him?

A. No, he understood it. Um, according to my, uh, notes, I
met with him, uh, let's see, I met with him on March 23rd
2015, it was a plea day. Um, we came in and reviewed the plea
offer: 6 years active, he, that was on both charges, the one
that was later dismissed, uh, we discussed the facts a the
case, he indicatgd that he wanted a trial. Um, I received
additional discovery on April 2nd 2015, um, and then he came
back in on April the 7th 2015. We reviewed the discovery and
discussed, uh, the 6-year offer, he determined that he did not
want him. I saw him on May 4th 2015 in Greer with regards to
the assault and battery third degree which was the charge from
2013, we discussed all these issues. I told him that I knew
throughout this that he was on probation, I kept on telling
him to go to probation, uh, and then I went out to Greer in
June and that case was still pending, um, the offer was
revised to a 3-year active offer, I left a message and to call
him back and then I called him on the 18th and talked to him,
uh, and left him a voice mail and then in July 8, 2015 he
showed up for his plea day. We reviewed the possession of
methamphetamine first offer, he turned it down, uh, and I told
the solicitor about that, uh, then in September of 2015 his,
uh, 2013 case was dismissed. Uh, the solicitor spoke to me on
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December 8, 2015 about putting on the Jaﬁuary 11th trial-
docket, I said I had no problems with that. Uh, probation
called me on December 22nd 2015 and informed me that he had a
violation probation warrant, that he had absconded
superyision, um, and on his NCIC I had seen this prior
conviction that he's talking about. He was convicted in 2012
for possession of methamphetamine first degree, uh, his
sentence was 3 years suspended to 3 years probation, uh, the
solicitor then informed me in January that they were going to
seek a conviction for a third, uh, offense based on his, uh,
2007 drug conviction and obviously, uh, the elements of
manufacturing methamphetamine does not require the actual drug
charges to be entered in, it's just a punishment thing. If
you read the statute, says for a first offense is this, for a
second offenée is this, for a third offense is this, so if you
went to trial would just say manufacturing methamphetamine,
that would be a sentencing issue for the judge. Um, I met
with him on December 29th 2015, I explained to him that he was
on the trial docket, we reviewed the discovery and discussed
all of the issues. I informed him what the mandatory minimum
was for manufacturing second degree which was a S5-year
mandatory sentence that could be suspended based on, uh, if he
had prior possessions, uh, but I explained that at trial if he
was convicted he would likely face a longer prison
incarceration. Then on January 8th I was out of the office
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but I was notified by the solicitor that they were going to
seek it as a third conviction, um, if he was convicted at a
trial. Uh, I had my co-worker Parker Baxley who's an attorney
at our office try and see him at the jail, he refused to come
outta the jail and visit with, uh, us. I then saw him on
December 13, 2006 or January 13, 2016, um, and I had a jail

visit with him. I reviewed all of the discovery and his

- options, um, I also informed him that his offer was to plead

to a second, with a mandatory minimum it could be suspended,
uh, he said that he didn't do anything. Uh, T also explained
the consequences that his violation of probation was
completely separate and that, um, he could be viclated even if
he wanted a trial. Uh, I reviewed discovery in the case and
indicated in my file that I was prepared for trial and then on
January 15th 2016 was his plea day, um, he received a sentence
of 10 years suspended to service of 3 years and 6 months
probation. His probation case was, I believe it was two
hundred or 2 years and maybe three hundred and something days,
it was basically a 3-year concurrent violation of probation
sentence that was ran concurrent with this.

Q. Thank you and just just to clarify, I I believe you
already addressed this in your testimony, but you didn't see
any issues with the sentence being enhanced to to a second
offense.

A. No, actually it could have been enhanced to a third
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offense. I checked with NCIC and I checked the clerk of
court's public index and reviewed his two prior convictions
from 2007 and also from 2012. I did not pull certified copies
of those, um, and I did not object at trial or at his plea for
a second because he was on probation and probation had told
the judge that he was on probation for possession. I
explained to him numerous times that manufacturing is based on-
prior drug convictions, it does not require that he had been
convicted of manufacturing one, two, and three times, I said
any of the drug convictions would be sufficient, he disagreed
with me but I explained to him that that's what the law was.
He may not have agréed or, I mean, he —- I can't say that he
understood 'cause he kept on arguing with me about it but I
tried to explain it to him the best I could.

Q. Thank you, Mr. Crangle, please answer any questions from
Mr. Johnson.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON:

Q. Uh, Mr. Crangle, that he ever ask you for a copy of his

discovery, do you recall?

A. He did not.
Q. Okay. All right, so that was never provided to him.
A. No, it's my policy that if I'm asked for a copy a

discovery I'1ll make a copy, a a full copy and give it to him
and I'll make a a note in my file that I gave him discovery
and that's later on what I started doing instead I got, I was

27




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

73

JOHN CRANGLE - CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. JOHNSON

3

getting letters from ODC, I started having clients sign
letters that I was giving them discovery but he never
requested it.
Q. Was was there any issue at the plea, he seems to, uh,
well well he testified that he he was on the, under the
impression that the judge was gonna do somethin' different,
was there any confusion there?
A. Not to my knowledge. I had explained to him, um, the day
of the plea I spoke to the solicitor and spoke to him and I
spoke to the judge, the judge indicated that he was willing to
run the 3-year sentence concurrent, his violation concurrent
with 3 yéars, um, I told him that. I did not expect that the
judge would suspend 10 years on service suspended to 3 years
and 6 months probation but I had told him basically your offer
is a 3-year offer, it's a recommendation, the judge says that
I believe he'll go along with it, I can't, I'm not the judge,
I can't guarantee you but I would, I encouraged him to accept
the offer since he, even if he got, even if he was found not
guilty at this trial, he was still going to get a 3-year
violation probation sentence so I encouraged him.

(Whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)
Q. All right, I have no further questions, Judge.

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Nothing further from the State, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: All right, I I'm tryin' take notes fast, one

28




74

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MOTIONS AND MATTERS

thing I'm not too, um, thought you testified first that you
did give him hard copy of his discovery.

THE.WITNESS: I did not, I reviewed it with him.

fHE COURT: Okay, thank you. You can feel free to
leave.

THE WITNESS: Thanks. :

(Whereupon, the witness left the stand.)

THE COURT: Anything else on this?

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: Your Honor, that's the State's case.

THE COURT: Anything else, Mr. Johnson?

(Whereupon, a discussion was held off the record.)

MR. JOHNSON: Uh, no, Your Honor, uh, we have no reply
testimony.

THE COURT: Okay. All right, we'll take it underx
advisement.

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: All right, thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Befcre Mr. Stewart leaves, uh, I I'm gonna
allow State to get certified copies of the, uh, prior
convictions although quite candidly based on the testimony I
don't really think I need it.

MR. JOHNSON: Okay, Judge, I understand.

THE COURT: And I'm gonna give him an opportunity to get
it. |

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: And, Your Honor, we we'd withdraw that
based on the testimony; ---
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THE COURT: I —--—-

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: -—---
review it, ---

THE COURT: No, I ---

MR. SCHMECKPEPER: —-—-

THE COURT:

however,

I can have a copy a that,

-—-— I just wanna while Mr.

if you, if you liked for

Judge.

Stewart's still

present say that I don't need that though.

MR. SCHMECKPEPER:

30

Thank Yocur Honor.
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Applicant filed this post-conviction relief application on April 1, 2016. The m:gter W
heard October 25, 2016. Applicant was represented by Brian P. Johnson, Esq. The State was

represented by Patrick Schmeckpeper, Esq.

Applicant is incarcerated with the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to
the Greenville County Clerk of Court’s orders of commitment. The December 2012 term of the
Greenville County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for possession of méthamphetamine (2012-GS-
23-010115). Applicant pled guilty to this charge, as indicted, on September 17, 2013. The
Honors;ble William H. Seals, Jr. sentenced Applicant to three (3) years confinement, provided
that with credit for one day of time served, the balance was to be suspended with probation for

two years.

The April 2015 term of the Greenville County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for

manufacturing methamphetamine 2nd offense (2015-GS-23-002626). Applicant was represented
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On January 14, 2016, Applicant pled guilty to the manufacturing methamphetamine
charge as indicted, Applicant's probation for the poss'ession charge was also revoked on January
14, 2016, for violating terms of his probation on September 11, 2015. The Honorable J. Cordell
Maddox sentenced Applicant to ten (10) years’ imprisonment, provided that upon service of
three (3) years, the balance is suspended with probation for six months. The Court credited
Applicant with 191 days’ of time served, and thjs sentence is to run concurnjent to the sentence
imposed for Applicant violating the terms of his probation. Judge Maddox revoked his original
probationary sentence for the possession charge and ordered Applicant to serve two (2) years and-
365 days’ of the remainder of his probation sentence. Applicant did not appeal his convi.ctions or

sentences.

In his application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges he is being held in custody

unlawfully for the followihg reasons:

“Subject matter jurisdiction not vested.”
Ineffective assistance of counsel.
. “Failure to object to or suppress evidence.”

W N

However, at the post-conviction relief hearing, Applicant presented three arguments as the
grounds for his requested relief, two of which were not listed above. Each of these arguments

will be separately discussed below.

First, Applicant claims ineffective assistance of counsel. Specifically, Applicant claims
that he was not provided with a copy of discovery after he made a request for the same from trial

counsel.

When ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged as a ground for relief, Applicant must

prove that “counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process W’V
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that the trial cannot be relied on as having produced a just result.” Strickland v. Washington, 466
U.S. 668, 686, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2064 (1984); Butler v. State,‘ 286 S.C. 441, 442, 334 S.E.2d 813,
814 (1985). The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence réquired in criminal cases. The courts presume counsel
“rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S, Ct. 2066. Applicant must overcome
this presumption in order to receive relief. See Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 118, 386 S.E.2d

624, 625 (1989).

A two-pronged test is used in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel.
First, Applicant must prove counsel’s performance was deficient. Under this prong, attorney
performance is measured by its “reasonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v.
State, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, 104 S. Ct. at
2065). Second, counsel’s deficient pefformance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that
“there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, _the result of the
proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A
reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of the
trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182, 186, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997) (citing Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984)).

Applicant testified that he requested a copy of discovery from. trial counsel and was not
provided with the same, and that this constitutes ineffective assistance of counsel. Trial counsel
testified that it is his usual practice to provide a copy of discovery to his clients when such a
request is made. Further, trial counsel testified that, if he did not provide Applicant with a copy

of discovery, he did review the discovery from the case with Applicant.
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Second, Applicant alleges that his charge was improperly enhanced from a possession of
methamphetamine, first offense to a possession of methamphetamine, second offense. Applicant
bolstered this allegation by pointing to changes made in pen on the indictment at issue. These
changes and Applicant’s allegations about them are discussed further below. As this is solely a
sentencing matter, it is not an appropriate ground for post-conviction relief. However, it is worth‘
noting that this offense would actually have been Applicant’s third offense, as he has other drug
convictions on his record and was on probation for one of those convictions at the time the
indictment in the present case was issued by the Grand Jury. As such, Applicant’s allegations of

improper enhancement do not serve as adequate grounds for relief,

Third, Applicant claims that the indictment at issue was improperly altered and that.those
alterations serve as grounds for relief. This claim is without merit. An inspection of a copy of the
indictment at issue reveals three markings on the indictment which might appear out of the
ordinary. The first is, for lack of a better term, a “squiggle” line like that made where one is
testing a ballpoint pen. The second is a group of three letters to the right of the case name which
do not appear to hold any specific meaning or have any significant effect on the face of the

indictment. Third, the CDR code in the “Indictment for” section of the indictment has been

crossed out and replaced with a new CDR code. It appears as though the original CDR code was

3776 and the replacement CDR code was 3777, As of the time the indictment was issued by the
Grand Jury, CDR Code 3776 represented the charge “Drugs/Manufacture Meth, 1st” and CDR

Code 3777 represented the charge “Drugs/Manufacture Meth, 2nd.”

The record and testimony indicate that this was and is a proper indictment. The alteration

of the CDR code did not result in any prejudice to the defendant, as the enhancement from the
4 U
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Ist to 2nd offense was a mechanism of sentencing, and not the indictment itself. As such,

Applicants allegations as to the altered indictment do not serve as adequate grounds for relief.

Wherefore, I find Applicant has not proved by a preponderance of the evidence that trial
counsel was ineffective on the grounds presented.by Applicant at the post-conviction relief
he;iring. Further, I find that Applicant has not shown by a preponderanée of the evidence that the
other two allegations — improper enhancement and altered indictment — presented at the post-
conviction relief hearing qualify as grounds for relief, Therefore, Applicant’s application for
Post-Conviction Relief is denied and dismissed with prejudice. ‘

This Court hereby advises Applicant that he must file and serve a Petition for Writ of
Certiorari within thirty (30) days of the service of this Order to secure appellate review. See
Rules 203 and 243, South Carolina Appellate Court Rules (SCACR). The Applicant’s attention

is directed to Rule 243, SCACR, for the procedures following the filing and service of the

Petition,

IT IS SO ORDERED.
October. G 2016 C. Hayes, III
Greenville, South Carolina P siding Judge é(’
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